
ARMSTRONG 
 Community Development District 

 
SEPTEMBER 10, 2020 

 



Armstrong 
 Community Development District 

475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 

 
September 3, 2020 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Armstrong Community 
Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Board of Supervisors Meeting of the Armstrong Community Development District will be 
held Thursday, September 10, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. via Zoom. Following is the advance agenda for 
this meeting: 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 II. Public Comment 
 III. Approval of the Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Meeting 
 IV.   Consideration of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & 

Frank 
 V. Staff Reports 
  A. District Counsel  
  B. District Engineer – Consideration of Requisition 48-49 (2019A Construction 

Account) 
  C. District Manager  
  D. Facility Manager – Report 
 VI. Consideration of 2019 Deficit Funding Request No. 4 
 VII. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 VIII. Financial Reports 
  A. Financial Statements as of July 31, 2020 
  B. Check Register 
 IX. Next Scheduled Meeting – 10/08/20 @ 3:30 p.m. at Plantation Oaks Amenity Center 
 X. Adjournment 
 
Enclosed for your review and approval are a copy of the minutes from the August 13, 2020 
meeting.  
 
The fourth order of business is consideration of audit engagement letter, which is enclosed for 
your review. 
 
Enclosed under the Engineer’s report is a requisition summary. 
 
A copy of the Facility Manager’s report will be sent under separate cover.  
 



2 

The sixth order of business is consideration of Deficit Funding Request No. 4, which is enclosed 
for your review. 
 
Enclosed are the financials and check register. 
 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature and staff will give their reports at the meeting.  In 
the meantime, if you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James Perry 
James Perry 
Manager  
 
cc: Katie Buchanan Katie Ibarra Gabriel McKee  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Armstrong 
Community Development District 

Agenda  
 
Thursday  
September 10, 2020  
3:30 p.m.  
 District Website:  www.ArmstrongCDD.com 
  
  
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comment 
 
 III. Approval of the Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Meeting 
 
 IV.   Consideration of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines 

& Frank 
 
 V. Staff Reports 
  A. District Counsel  
  
  B. District Engineer – Consideration of Requisition 48-49 (2019A 

Construction Account) 
  
  C. District Manager  
 
  D. Facility Manager – Report 
 
 VI. Consideration of 2019 Deficit Funding Request No. 4 
 
 VII. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
 VIII. Financial Reports 
  A. Financial Statements as of July 31, 2020 
 
  B. Check Register 
 
 IX. Next Scheduled Meeting – 10/08/20 @ 3:30 p.m. at Plantation Oaks Amenity 

Center 
 
 X. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 



	

Minutes of Meeting 
Armstrong Community Development District 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Armstrong Community 

Development District was held Thursday, August 13, 2020 at 3:30 p.m. via Zoom. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Liam O’Reilly Chairman 
 Mike Taylor Vice Chairman 
 Blake Weatherly Supervisor 
 Rose Bock Supervisor 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 James Perry District Manger 
 Katie Buchanan District Counsel 
 Zach Brecht District Engineer 
 Lynzie Chambers Greyhawk HOA Community Manager 
 David Freeman Evergreen 
 Sherry McNees Evergreen 
 Alex Boyer Evergreen 
 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Perry called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment 

 There being none, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Affidavit of Publication 

 A copy of the affidavit of publication of the public hearing was included in the agenda 

package. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the July 9, 2020 
Meeting 

 Mr. Perry stated on page 1 there is a correction, we have David Freeman listed as a 

Greenpointe and we will change that to Evergreen. 

 Mr. Weatherly joined the meeting at this time via Zoom. 



August	13,	2020	 Armstrong	CDD	

2	

 

On MOTION by Mr. O’Reilly seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in 
favor the minutes of the July 9, 2020 meeting were approved as 
amended.  

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of the Minutes of the June 11, 
2020 and July 9, 2020 Audit Committee 
Meetings 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. O’Reilly with all in 
favor the minutes of the June 11th and July 9th audit committee 
meetings were accepted.   

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for 
Fiscal Year 2021 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in favor 
the public hearing was opened. 

 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2020-09 Relating to the Annual Appropriations and 
Adopting the Budget for fiscal Year 2021 

 Mr. Perry stated we went through the budget process about two months ago approving a 

budget and this is the final one for adoption.  The budget is set up in a columnar format with the 

first column being the adopted budget for 2020, actual financials through June 30, what we project 

for the next three months, the total projected for this fiscal year and what we are looking for 

adoption today in the last column.  The biggest change under revenues is, last year we had 200 

platted lots, this year we have 368 platted lots and those will all be on the assessment roll.  In last 

year’s approved budget we initially set the assessment levels at $800 per unit and they were 

dropped down to $695 per unit and this fiscal year they are going back up to $800.  We have a 

provision for cost sharing of Tynes Boulevard, which is an addition this year and that is the major 

items in the revenue section.  With the addition of platted lots, the developer contribution amount 

anticipated for this year will be going down.   

 Under the administrative section the costs and expenditures are relatively flat and they 

usually are from year to year.  Under field services for this coming fiscal year versus the budget 



August	13,	2020	 Armstrong	CDD	

3	

for last year, the largest increases are related to security, which we didn’t have in place last year, 

then some additional landscaping that has been added for this year.   

 In regard to the amenity center, a few items related to janitorial went up considerably.  The 

level of service for janitorial was a minimal level then we upped that for cleaning of the facilities.   

Other than that most of the items are pretty standard and there hasn’t been any changes from the 

approved budget you looked at a couple months ago.   

 After that we have a short narrative on each of the line items, then the amortization 

schedules and the debt service funds for the 2017 and 2019 bonds.   

 There being no questions or comments on the budget, the board took the following action. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. O’Reilly seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-09 was approved. 

 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2020-10 Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2021 

 Mr. Perry stated this resolution provides the assessments and the collection of those 

assessments through the tax roll and direct bills.  All the platted lots will be on the tax roll, the 

only direct bill will be related to the 115 unplatted lots of the developer.  Attached to the resolution 

is the assessment roll and the budget. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. O’Reilly seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in 
favor Resolution 2020-10 was approved. 

 

C. Consideration of Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Funding Agreements 

 Mr. Perry stated next is the funding agreement with Greyhawk Venture, LLC and we will 

insert some numbers, it is a standard form agreement put in place a few years ago and this will be 

a little different now that we are doing the assessments, but it is a standard form agreement that 

Greyhawk is familiar with and have previously approved. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. O’Reilly seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in 
favor the fiscal year 2020/2021 funding agreements were approved. 

 



August	13,	2020	 Armstrong	CDD	

4	

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. O’Reilly with all in 
favor the public hearing was closed. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

 A. District Counsel 

 Ms. Buchanan stated I have circulated the cost share agreement to East West for signature, 

I think we have agreed on the terms it is just a matter of getting pen to paper. 

 Is the pond done that is going to be maintained by Eagle Landing?  Are we at a point where 

we want to put in service for South Village? 

 Mr. O’Reilly stated the pond is done, the lots in Phase 3 are not complete but the pond 

excavation is complete and it is all one pond.  The only thing is the pond itself, that phase is not 

platted yet.  I think the original intent was when it was platted that the pond tract itself would be 

dedicated to the CDD, but it is not platted.   

 Ms. Buchanan stated we previously authorized an agreement that gives an easement to 

South Village CDD or at least South Village has so we can move forward with taking over the 

maintenance with South Village under that easement agreement and do the conveyance at a later 

date.   

 

 B. District Engineer – Consideration of Requisitions 45-47 from the 2019A 
Construction Account 

 Mr. Brecht stated in the package you have a requisition summary for requisitions 45-47 to 

be considered at today’s meeting.  The total amount to be approved is $362,489.60. 

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. O’Reilly with all in 
favor requisitions 45-47 from the 2019 A construction account were 
approved. 

 

 C. District Manager – Discussion of Proposed Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 
2021 

 Mr. Perry stated the proposed meeting schedule for fiscal year 2021 is pretty much the 

same schedule we have now.  We can approve the meeting schedule and we can change meeting 

dates with about 10 days notice or we can cancel meetings. 

 



August	13,	2020	 Armstrong	CDD	

5	

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor seconded by Mr. O’Reilly with all in 
favor the fiscal year 2021 meeting schedule reflecting meetings on 
the second Thursday of each month was approved. 

 

 Mr. Perry stated the governor has extended the ability to conduct Zoom meetings and we 

can conduct our meetings via Zoom until October 1.   

 

 D. Facility Manger 

 Mr. Freeman reviewed the amenity manager’s report, copy of which was included in the 

agenda package. 

 Ms. Chambers stated we did have Alex start with us this past Monday.  David is going to 

be primarily over the HOA side and Alex is going to take over the CDD side and make sure 

everything is running properly at the amenity center.  We did a walk through yesterday and he will 

be able to go on from there and make sure we continue to keep everything up to date and working.  

We have found that outdoor movie nights work as long as we mark out social distancing where 

they are allowed to set up, trivia nights same thing, only certain tables are available and being 

outdoors.  We would like to start bingo and do something at the dog park.   

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of 2019 Deficit Funding 
Request No. 3 

 Mr. Perry stated deficit funding agreement no. 3 is in the amount of $255,658.30 and is 

comprised of the previously approved requisitions 45-47 net of the funds available of $106,831.30.   

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in favor 
deficit funding request no. 3 in the amount of $255,658.30 was 
approved. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests and Audience 
Comments 

 Mr. O’Reilly stated I want to confirm that you received the check from Clay Electric for 

the reimbursement of the contribution in aid from Phase 1. 

 Mr. Perry responded I don’t believe we have.   

 Mr. O’Reilly stated that should be forthcoming and that should be about $150,00 back into 

the capital.   



August	13,	2020	 Armstrong	CDD	

6	

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 

A. Financial Statements as of June 30, 2020 

 A copy of the financials was included in the agenda package. 

 

B. Check Register  

 

On MOTION by Ms. Bock seconded by Mr. O’Reilly with all in 
favor the check register was approved. 

 

C. O&M Funding Request 

 

On MOTION by Mr. O’Reilly seconded by Ms. Bock with all in 
favor the O&M funding request in the amount of $68,000 was 
approved. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – 03/17/20 at 3:30 
p.m. at the Plantation Oaks Amenity Center 

 The meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 
 
 
 
    

Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 15, 2020 
 
 
 
Armstrong Community Development District 
Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 W Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, FL 32092 
 
 
The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
You have requested that we audit the financial statements of Armstrong Community Development 
District, which comprise governmental activities and each major fund for the General Fund as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024 which collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements.  We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our 
understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter for the year ending September 30, 
2020, 2021, 2022, 2023, and 2024.  
 
Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial 
statements. 
 
The Responsibilities of the Auditor 
 
We will conduct the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and "Government Auditing Standards" issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal 
control, an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even 
though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards.  Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors or fraud that are immaterial to 
the financial statements.   



Armstrong Community Development District 
July 15, 2020 
Page 2  
 
 
In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to Armstrong Community  
Development District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  However, we will 
communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in 
internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the 
audit.   
 
We will also communicate to the Board any fraud involving senior management and fraud that 
causes a material misstatement of the financial statements that becomes known to us during the 
audit, and any instances of noncompliance with laws and regulations that we become aware of 
during the audit.   
 
The funds that you have told us are maintained by Armstrong Community Development District 
and that are to be included as part of our audit are listed below: 
 

1. General Fund 
2. Debt Service Fund  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Armstrong Community Development District 
July 15, 2020 
Page 3  
 
 
The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial 
Reporting Framework 
 
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands that 
it has responsibility: 
 

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

2. To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are 
issued or available to be issued, and to disclose the date through which 
subsequent events were evaluated in the financial statements. Management also 
agrees that it will not evaluate subsequent events earlier than the date of the 
management representation letter referred to below;       

3. For the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 

4. To provide us with: 
a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, 
documentation and other matters; 

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose 
of the audit; and 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the audit including among other items: 
 

1. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this 
letter; and; 

2. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us 
during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Armstrong Community Development District 
July 15, 2020 
Page 4  
 
 
Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that Armstrong Community Development 
District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities, and for informing us 
about all known material violations of such laws or regulations. In addition, management is 
responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving 
management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, and others where the fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Management is also responsible for 
informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
received in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others. 
 
The Board is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud within the entity, 
and its knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity. 
 
Armstrong Community Development District agrees that it will not associate us with any public or 
private securities offering without first obtaining our consent. Therefore, Armstrong Community 
Development District agrees to contact us before it includes our reports or otherwise makes 
reference to us, in any public or private securities offering. 
 
Because Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank will rely on Armstrong Community Development 
District and its management and Board of Supervisors to discharge the foregoing responsibilities,  
Armstrong Community Development District holds harmless and releases Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
Gaines & Frank, its partners, and employees from all claims, liabilities, losses and costs arising 
in circumstances where there has been a known misrepresentation by a member of Armstrong 
Community Development District’s management, which has caused, in any respect, Berger, 
Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank’s breach of contract or negligence.  This provision shall survive 
the termination of this arrangement for services. 
 
Records and Assistance 
 
If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the Armstrong Community Development 
District’s records, the availability of appropriate audit evidence, or indications of a significant risk 
of material misstatement of the financial statements because of error, fraudulent financial 
reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment, prevent us from 
completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any course of 
action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion, issuing a 
report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 
 
During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should 
be reflected in the Armstrong Community Development District books and records. The District 
will determine that all such data, if necessary, will be so reflected. Accordingly, the District will not 
expect us to maintain copies of such records in our possession. 
 
 



Armstrong Community Development District 
July 15, 2020 
Page 5  
 
 
The assistance to be supplied, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of accounts, 
has been discussed and coordinated with James Perry. The timely and accurate completion of 
this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of our audit report. 
 
Other Relevant Information 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, a copy of our most recent peer review report 
has been provided to you, for your information.  
 
Either party may unilaterally terminate this agreement, with or without cause, upon sixty (60) days 
written notice subject to the condition that the District will pay all invoices for services rendered 
prior to the date of termination. 
 
Fees, Costs and Access to Workpapers 
 
Our fees for the services described above are based upon the value of the services performed 
and the time required by the individuals assigned to the engagement, plus direct expenses.  
Invoices for fees will be submitted in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance with the terms of 
this engagement.  Billings are due upon submission.  Our fee for the services described in this 
letter for the years ending September 30, 2020 and 2021 will not exceed $3,910, the fee for the 
year ending September 30, 2022 will not exceed $4,050, and the fee for the years ending 
September 30, 2023 and 2024 will not exceed $4,300, unless the scope of the engagement is 
changed, the assistance which Armstrong Community Development District has agreed to furnish 
is not provided, or unexpected conditions are encountered, in which case we will discuss the 
situation with you before proceeding.  All other provisions of this letter will survive any fee 
adjustment.   
 
In the event we are requested or authorized by Armstrong Community Development District or 
are required by government regulation, subpoena, or other legal process to produce our 
documents or our personnel as witnesses with respect to our engagement for Armstrong 
Community Development District, Armstrong Community Development District  will, so long as 
we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our 
professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in 
responding to such requests. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines, 
& Frank and constitutes confidential information. However, you acknowledge and grant your 
assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other 
government audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access to the 
audit documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the audit documentation for a 
period of at least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period if we are requested 
to do so by the cognizant or oversight agency.  
 



Armstrong Community Development District 
July 15, 2020 
Page 6  
 
 
Access to requested documentation will be provided under the supervision of Berger, Toombs, 
Elam, Gaines, & Frank audit personnel and at a location designated by our Firm.  
 
Information Security – Miscellaneous Terms 
 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank is committed to the safe and confidential treatment of 
Armstrong Community Development District’s proprietary information. Berger, Toombs, Elam, 
Gaines & Frank is required to maintain the confidential treatment of client information in 
accordance with relevant industry professional standards which govern the provision of services 
described herein. Armstrong Community Development District agrees that it will not provide 
Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank with any unencrypted electronic confidential or proprietary 
information, and the parties agree to utilize commercially reasonable measures to maintain the 
confidentiality of Armstrong Community Development District’s information, including the use of 
collaborate sites to ensure the safe transfer of data between the parties. 
 
If any term or provision of this arrangement letter is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, 
such term or provision will be deemed stricken and all other terms and provisions will remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Reporting 
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of Armstrong Community Development 
District’s financial statements. Our report will be addressed to the Board of Armstrong Community 
Development District. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed. 
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis-
of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement. 
 
In addition to our report on Armstrong Community Development District’s financial statements, 
we will also issue the following types of reports: 
 
• Reports on internal control and compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of 

contracts or grant agreements. We will report on any internal control findings and/or 
noncompliance which could have a material effect on the financial statements; 

• Management letter required by the Auditor General, State of Florida; and 
• Attestation reports required by the Auditor General, State of Florida. 

 
This letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between Berger, 
Toombs, Elam, Gaines, & Frank and Armstrong Community Development District, superseding 
all proposals, oral or written, and all other communications, with respect to the terms of the 
engagement between the parties. 
 
 
 
 



Armstrong Community Development District 
July 15, 2020 
Page 7  

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and 
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements including our 
respective responsibilities. 

Sincerely, 

BERGER, TOOMBS, ELAM, GAINES & FRANK 
J. W. Gaines, CPA 

Confirmed on behalf of the addressee: 

_______________________________________ 

___________________________ ___, _______ 

audit
BTEGF





ADDENDUM TO ENGAGEMENT LETTER BETWEEN BERGER, TOOMBS, 
ELAM, GAINES AND FRANK AND ARMSTRONG COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(DATED JULY 15, 2020) 

Public Records.  Auditor shall, pursuant to and in accordance with Section 
119.0701, Florida Statutes, comply with the public records laws of the State of Florida, 
and specifically shall: 

a. Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the
services or work set forth in this Agreement; and

b. Upon the request of the District’s custodian of public records, provide the
District with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be
inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed
the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided
by law; and

c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following
completion of the Agreement if the Auditor does not transfer the records to
the District; and

d. Upon completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost to the District, all
public records in possession of the Auditor or keep and maintain public
records required by the District to perform the service or work provided for
in this Agreement.  If the Auditor transfers all public records to the District
upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall destroy any duplicate
public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public
disclosure requirements. If the Auditor keeps and maintains public records
upon completion of the Agreement, the Auditor shall meet all applicable
requirements for retaining public records.  All records stored electronically
must be provided to the District, upon request from the District’s custodian
of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information
technology systems of the District.

Auditor acknowledges that any requests to inspect or copy public records relating 
to this Agreement must be made directly to the District pursuant to Section 119.0701(3), 
Florida Statutes.  If notified by the District of a public records request for records not in 
the possession of the District but in possession of the Auditor, the Auditor shall provide 
such records to the District or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 
reasonable time.  Auditor acknowledges that should Auditor fail to provide the public 
records to the District within a reasonable time, Auditor may be subject to penalties 
pursuant to Section 119.10, Florida Statutes.   



 
IF THE AUDITOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE AUDITOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT/CONTRACT, THE 
AUDITOR MAY CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS FOR THE DISTRICT AT: 
 

GMS-NF, LLC 
475 WEST TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092 
TELEPHONE: 904-940-5850 
EMAIL:  JPERRY@GMSNF.COM 

 
 
Auditor: J.W. Gaines District: Armstrong CDD 
 
By:    _________________________            By:    ________________________ 
 
Title:  Director                                              Title: ________________________ 
 
Date:  July 15, 2020                      Date: ________________________ 

audit
J



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



ARMSTRONG COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

September 10, 2020 

1. Consideration of Requisition 48 -49
2019A Construction Account 

Scott A. Wild 
District Engineer 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. 



2019A REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED Requisition Amount

10-Sept 48 Besch & Smith Pay App #12 Greyhawk Phases 2 & 3 178,900.83$   

10-Sept 49 England Thims & Miller Construction Document Revisions and Additional Services (WA#2) Invoice 195476 6,889.75$   

185,790.58$    

ARMSTRONG COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2019A BONDS

REQUISITION SUMMARY

September 10, 2020

2019A REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED

T:\2019\19-207\CDD\9-10  Req summary    Sheet1 (3)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Community Development District  Request #2019-4

September 11, 2020

Greyhawk Ventures LLC Deficit Funding
Series 2019A Assessent Area 2 Bonds

Req Payee Amount

48 Besch & Smith

Pay App #12 178,900.83$                         

49 England-Thims & Miller

Inv# 195476 6,889.75$                              

TOTAL TO BE FUNDED 185,790.58$            

Wire Instructions:

U.S. Bank National Association
777 E Winsconsin Avenue
Milwaukee, WI 53202-5300

ABA Routing No.: 091000022

BNF: U.S. Bank CT WIRE CLRG

BNF: Account No: 180121167365

Ref: ARMSTRONG CDD 2019A Acq & Construction

Armstrong



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 

































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 






















































































































	Board Letter
	Agenda
	III.	Approval of the Minutes of the August 13, 2020 Meeting
	IV.  	Consideration of Audit Engagement Letter with Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank
	V. B.	District Engineer – Consideration of Requisition 48-49 (2019A Construction Account)
	VI.	Consideration of 2019 Deficit Funding Request No. 4
	VIII. A.	Financial Statements as of July 31, 2020
		B.	Check Register



